Finance Committee

Meeting Venue: Cynulliad
Committee Room 2 - Senedd Cenedlaethol

Cymru

. ] National
Meeting date: Assembly for

Wednesday, 14 May 2014 Wales

Meeting time: ‘i// y’
08.30

For further information please contact:
Bethan Davies

Committee Clerk

029 2089 8120
FinanceCommittee@wales.gov.uk

Agenda

(THE COMMITTEE AGREED AT ITS MEETING ON 8 MAY 2014 THAT ITEM 1 WILL BE
HELD IN PRIVATE)

1 Finance Wales Inquiry: Consideration of draft report (08:30-09:00)
FIN(4)-09-14(paper 1)

2 Introductions, apologies and substitutions (09:00)
3 Papers to note (09:00) (Pages 1 - 2)

4 Wales Bill: Legislative Consent Memorandum (09:05-10:00) (Pages 3 -
57)

FIN(4)-09-14(paper 2)

Wales Bill (as amended in Committee 7 May 2014)

Legal Brief

Research Brief



Jane Hutt AM, Minister for Finance

Andrew Jeffreys, Deputy Director, Strategic Capital Investment, Welsh Government
Gareth Morgan, Acting Deputy Director, Financial Reform, Welsh Government

Jeff Andrews, Specialist Policy Advisor

5 Best Practice Budget Processes Inquiry: Evidence Session 1 (10:00-
11:00) (Pages 58 - 67)

FIN(4)-09-14(paper 3)

Research Brief

Jane Hutt AM, Minister for Finance

Andrew Jeffreys, Deputy Director, Strategic Capital Investment, Welsh Government
Matt Denham Jones, Head of Budgetary Control & Reporting, Welsh Government
Jeff Andrews, Specialist Policy Advisor

(Break 11:00-11:15)

6 Best Practice Budget Processes Inquiry: Evidence Session 2 (11:15-
12:15) (Pages 68 - 77)

FIN(4)-09-14(paper 4)

Research brief

Dr Joachim Wehner - London School of Economics

7 Motion under Standing Order 17.42 to resolve to exclude the public

from the meeting for the following business: (12:15)
ltem 8

8 Best Practice Budget Processes Inquiry: Consideration of evidence
(12:15-12:30)



Agenda Item 3

Finance Committee

. . : Cynulliad
Meet \Y, . R 2 -
eeting Venue Committee Room Senedd Semariativ)
_ Cymru
Meeting date: Thursday, 8 May 2014 T
Assembly for
Meeting time: 09.00 - 10.15 Wales

This meeting can be viewed on Senedd TV at: V
http://www.senedd.tv/archiveplayer.jsf?Zv=en_300000_08_05_2014&t=0&I=en /

Concise Minutes:

Jocelyn Davies AM (Chair)
Peter Black AM

Assembly Members:

Christine Chapman AM
Paul Davies AM

Mike Hedges AM

Alun Ffred Jones AM
Julie Morgan AM

Isobel Garner, Wales Audit Office
Steve O’Donoghue, Wales Audit Office

Witnesses:

lan Summers, Finance and Governance Advisor

Kevin Thomas, Assistant Auditor General, Wales Audit
Office

Huw Vaughan Thomas, Auditor General for Wales, Wales
Audit Office

Bethan Davies (Clerk)
Meriel Singleton (Second Clerk)

Committee Staff:

Claire Griffiths (Deputy Clerk)
Richard Bettley (Researcher)
Joanest Jackson (Legal Advisor)

Pack Page 1


http://www.senedd.tv/archiveplayer.jsf?v=en_300000_08_05_2014&t=0&l=en

1 Introductions, apologies and substitutions
1.1  The Chair welcomed Members and members of the public to the meeting.

1.2 Apologies were received from Ann Jones.

2 Papers to note
2.1 The papers were noted.

3 Wales Audit Office: Consideration of the Fee Scheme, Fee Scales, Annual
Plan and Code of Practice

3.1 The Wales Audit Office and the Auditor General for Wales introduced the Fee
Scheme, Annual Plan 2014-15 and the Code of Practice to the Committee and
answered Members’ questions on the papers.

3.1 During the private part of the meeting, Members agreed to endorse these
documents and the Chair will write accordingly.

4 Motion under Standing Order 17.42 to resolve to exclude the public

from the meeting for the following business:
4.1 The motion was agreed.

5 Best Practice Budget Process
5.1 The Committee received a briefing from lan Summers, Committee Adviser, as part
of their inquiry into Best Practice Budget Procedures.

Pack Page 2



Agenda ltem 4

LEGISLATIVE CONSENT MEMORANDUM
WALES BILL

1. This Legislative Consent Memorandum is laid under Standing Order ("SO") 29.2.
S0O29 prescribes that a Legislative Consent Memorandum must be laid, and a
Legislative Consent Motion may be tabled, before the National Assembly for Wales if
a UK Parliamentary Bill makes provision in relation to Wales for a purpose that falls
within, or modifies the legislative competence of the National Assembly. This Bill
modifies the Assembly’s legislative competence, as further described below. It also
makes provision in respect of which a Written Statement must be laid in accordance
with SO30, and this Memorandum should therefore be read in conjunction with the
Written Statement, which has been tabled at the same time.

2. The Wales Bill ("the Bill*) was introduced in the House of Commons on 20 March.
The Bill, amendments tabled to the Bill and the Impact Assessment are available at:
Bill documents — Wales Bill 2013-14 — UK Parliament

The Command Paper 'Wales Bill: Financial Empowerment and Accountability’, which
was published alongside the Wales Bill, is available at:
www.gov.uk/government/publications/wales-bill

Summary of the Bill and its Policy Objectives

3. The Bill is sponsored by the Wales Office. The UK Government’s expressed policy
objectives for the Bill are to make the National Assembly for Wales ("the Assembly")
and the Welsh Government more accountable to the people of Wales for raising the
money they spend, and to improve the system of elections to the Assembly.

4. The Bill is in four parts:

o Part 1, clauses 1 to 5, makes changes to the National Assembly for Wales and
the Welsh Assembly Government.

o Part 2, clauses 6 to 22, establishes new tax and borrowing arrangements. It
devolves responsibility for tax on land transactions and disposals to landfill,
creates borrowing powers, and creates the possibility, subject to approval in a
referendum, of a 10 pence reduction in income tax across each rate band,
coupled with the power for the Assembly by resolution to impose a Welsh rate
of income tax in compensation. It also creates the possibility of new devolved
taxes, and provides competence to legislate on budgetary procedures.

o Part 3, clauses 23 and 24, covers two miscellaneous issues: limits on housing
revenue account debts, and the relationship between the Law Commission and
Welsh devolved institutions.

o Part 4, clauses 25 to 29, sets out commencement, extent, and other matters.

o Schedule 1 gives detail on the tax referendum, while Schedule 2 covers

amendments consequential to the devolution of tax on land transactions.

Paclk Page 3


http://services.parliament.uk/bills/2013-14/wales/documents.html
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/wales-bill

Provisions in the Bill for which consent is sought

5.

The provisions in the Bill modifying the Assembly’s legislative competence and for
which consent is sought are in clauses 6, 7, 14, 17 and 21.

Clause 6: Taxation: introductory

6.

10.

Clause 6 inserts a new Part 4A (comprising four Chapters) into the Government of
Wales Act 2006 ("GOWA 2006") in order to modify the Assembly's competence to
provide fiscal powers over fully devolved taxes.

The clause describes the structure of the new Part 4A, defines "devolved taxes" and
provides the introductory Chapter 1. It explains that the Assembly's competence
would be modified by enabling it to:

o introduce a new devolved tax on transactions involving interests in land (Part 4
Chapter 3 - covered below under Clause 14);

o introduce a new devolved tax on disposals to landfill (Part 4 Chapter 4 - covered
below under Clause 17).

Should the Assembly decide to establish a body to collect and manage its devolved
taxes, Clause 6 (section 116B) would confer legislative competence on the Assembly
to appoint civil servants to that body, provided their functions relate to the collection
and management of devolved taxes and/or local government finance matters.
Regardless of on whom the Assembly confers the power to appoint those civil
servants, the costs associated with their appointment would be borne by the Welsh
Ministers.

Changes to the new Part 4A, including the devolution of additional devolved taxes to
Wales, may be amended by Order in Council, although this would be subject to the
affirmative resolution procedure in the Assembly and both Houses of Parliament
before it could become law.

Clause 6 would amend the legislative competence to ensure that, if in the future an
Order is made devolving additional taxes to Wales, existing exceptions (which
include, for example, motor vehicle insurance) would not prevent provision about
taxes on those matters.

Clause 7: Amendments relating to the Commissioners for Revenue and Customs

11.

Clause 7 includes amendments to Parts 2 and 3 of Schedule 7 to GOWA 2006 to
allow the Assembly, with the consent of HM Treasury, to remove or modify the
functions of HMRC where those functions relate to devolved taxes.

Clause 14: Welsh tax on transactions involving interests in land

12.

Currently stamp duty land tax is payable on the purchase or transfer of property or
land in the UK where the amount paid is above a certain threshold (Scotland is
excluded by the Scotland Act 2012, although those amendments have not yet come
into effect). Clause 14 would allow the Assembly to introduce its own land

Pack Page 4



13.

transaction tax, and links the introduction of the new Welsh tax to the disapplication
of stamp duty land tax in Wales.

Clause 14 includes Chapter 3 of the new Part 4a for insertion into GOWA 2006 which
describes the tax and when it may be chargeable. It also lists those who would be
exempt from paying the tax:

. in Government: a Minister of the Crown; the Welsh Ministers, the First Minister
and the Counsel General; the Scottish Ministers; and a Northern Ireland
department; and

o in Parliament: The Corporate Officer of the House of Lords; The Corporate
Officer of the House of Commons; The Assembly Commission; The Scottish
Parliamentary Corporate Body; and The Northern Ireland Assembly
Commission.

Clause 17: Welsh tax on disposals to landfill

14.

15.

Currently landfill tax is charged on the disposal of waste to landfill in England and
Wales or Northern Ireland (landfill in Scotland is excluded by the Scotland Act 2012,
although those amendments have not yet come into effect). Clause 17 provides the
mechanism for allowing the Assembly to introduce its own tax on disposals of waste
to landfill.

Clause 17 introduces a new Chapter 4 into Part 4A of GOWA 2006, which sets out
the scope of the Welsh Government’s power to introduce a tax on disposals to landfill
made in Wales. Section 116N(1) provides that a tax charged on disposals to landfill
made in Wales would be a devolved tax and section 116N(2) explains when a
disposal is a disposal to landfill. Subsection (2) ensures that the devolved tax could
not be charged on disposals to which UK landfill tax applies, thereby linking the
commencement of the new devolved tax to the disapplication of the UK landfill tax in
Wales.

Clause 21: Budgetary procedures

16.

17.

18.

Clause 21 would provide the Assembly with competence to legislate for its own
budgetary procedures by inserting this as a new subject in paragraph 13 of Part 1 of
Schedule 7 to GOWA 2006. Subsection (2) of the clause also defines what
budgetary procedures comprise.

The clause would enable the Assembly to legislate in relation to procedures for
scrutinising and setting the annual budget of Welsh Ministers, other "relevant
persons" and any other body receiving payments from the Welsh Consolidated Fund
by virtue of an enactment (either Parliamentary or Assembly). It would, for example,
allow the Assembly to pass an annual Finance Act in place of the current annual
budget motion.

As the Assembly would also have competence for devolved taxes (i.e. transactions
involving interests in land, and disposals to landfill), the budgetary procedures could
include the determination of the tax rates in relation to these taxes, tax receipt
forecasts, variances, borrowing for current and capital purposes and amounts for

Pac;ok Page 5



19.

20.

repaying borrowing, in addition to authorising how much "relevant persons"” (defined
in the Bill) may spend.

In order to legislate for new budgetary procedures, Part 2 of Schedule 7 of GOWA
2006 is amended by subsection (3) of clause 21 to permit the Assembly to modify
those sections in GOWA 2006 which refer to the current budget motion process - i.e.
sections 119 (so far as it relates to the estimated payments described and not the
Secretary of State’s duty in subsection (3) of that section), 120(2), and 125 to 128.
As the Assembly may also need to make limited modifications to other provision in
Part 5 of GOWA 2006, subsection (3) inserts a new sub-paragraph into paragraph 5
of Part 2 of Schedule 7 enabling an Act of the Assembly to make amendments to
other sections in Part 5 or section 159 of GOWA 2006 provided they are (a)
incidental to, or consequential on, provisions in an Assembly Act relating to
budgetary procedures or devolved taxes, and (b) consented to by the Secretary of
State.

Should a referendum decide that there should be devolution of income tax rate-
varying powers to Wales, it would be for the Assembly to decide whether the
Assembly resolution setting the Welsh rate of income tax should be considered as
part of the budgetary procedures.

Rationale for using this UK Bill

21.

It is the view of the Welsh Government that it is appropriate to deal with these
provisions in this UK Bill because the provisions could not be made by Assembly Act.
The provisions are not currently within the legislative competence of the Assembly
but are instead modifying that competence by extending it for the future. The
provisions implement a number of the recommendations of the Silk Commission’s
Part 1 report, which the Welsh Government has accepted in their entirety.

Financial implications

22.

23.

24.

25.

Discussions are ongoing between the Welsh Government and UK Government on
the costs of implementing the financial reforms that would be brought about by the
measures included in the Wales Bill.

Alongside the introduction of the new Welsh taxes (in April 2018), HM Treasury
would apply a reduction to the Welsh block grant to reflect the Welsh Government's
new revenue-raising powers. Discussions are ongoing to agree what the level of this
reduction would be.

As the Welsh budget would bear the volatility generated by the revenues from fully
devolved taxes, the Wales Bill provides the Welsh Government with a short term
borrowing capability to manage this volatility. The operation of the overall funding
system, in which devolved tax revenues would interact with the block grant and with
borrowing powers, is a matter of ongoing discussion with HM Treasury.

It is not expected that the new borrowing powers - to manage volatility or for capital
investment purposes - would have a significant administrative overhead.

Pack Page 6



26.

27.

The UK Government has said that any additional costs associated with the
establishment of new Welsh taxes on transactions involving interests in land and on
disposals to landfill (net of savings to the UK Government because it would no longer
collect or administer UK stamp duty land tax and UK landfill tax in Wales) would be
borne by the Welsh Government, however it would work constructively with the
Welsh Government to minimise any such costs.

Were there to be a "yes" vote in a referendum to introduce a new Welsh rate of
income tax, the UK Government considers that the associated costs should be borne
by the Welsh Government. No discussions have taken place with the UK
Government on those costs, however in its Impact Assessment on the Wales Bill, the
UK Government comments that the cost of updating HMRC's IT systems and
operational processes to support the changes to income tax powers brought about by
the Scotland Act 2012 have been estimated to be about £40-45 million, with annual
running costs of around £4.2 million. The UK Government notes that while lessons
learned following the work for Scotland may help minimise implementation costs in
Wales, as could the smaller population, other factors could serve to increase costs,
including the greater economic activity on the border between Wales and England
(which may increase the number of enquiries), the need to expand the capacity of
HMRC's Welsh language helpline, and additional compliance costs related to the
treatment of certain tax reliefs and incomes such as Gift Aid and tax relief for pension
schemes.

Jane Hutt AM
Minister for Finance
May 2014

Paqg< Page 7



Wales Bill

N O

11
12
13

Bill 205

[AS AMENDED IN COMMITTEE]

CONTENTS

PART 1

THE ASSEMBLY AND WELSH GOVERNMENT

National Assembly for Wales

Frequency of Assembly ordinary general elections

Removal of restriction on standing for election for both constituency and
electoral region

MPs to be disqualified from membership of Assembly

Welsh Government

The Welsh Government
First Minister: removal of power to designate after dissolution of Assembly
PART 2
FINANCE
Introductory

Taxation: introductory
Amendments relating to the Commissioners for Revenue and Customs

Welsh rate of income tax

Welsh rate of income tax
Welsh basic, higher and additional rates of income tax
Amendments to the definition of a Scottish taxpayer

Referendum on income tax provisions

Referendum about commencement of income tax provisions
Proposal for referendum by Assembly
Commencement of the income tax provisions etc if majority in favour

55/3

Pack Page 8



ii

Wales Bill

14
15
16

17
18

19
20

21

22

23
24

25
26
27
28
29

Welsh tax on land transactions

Welsh tax on transactions involving interests in land
Disapplication of UK stamp duty land tax
Information on Welsh land transactions

Welsh tax on disposals to landfill

Welsh tax on disposals to landfill
Disapplication of UK landfill tax

Borrowing

Borrowing by the Welsh Ministers
Repeal of existing borrowing power

Budgetary procedures
Budgetary procedures

Reports
Reports on the implementation and operation of this Part
PART 3
MISCELLANEOUS

Local housing authorities: limits on housing revenue account debt
The work of the Law Commission so far as relating to Wales

PART 4
GENERAL
Orders
Interpretation
Power to make supplementary, consequential, etc provision

Commencement
Extent and short title

Schedule 1 — Referendum about commencement of income tax provisions
Schedule 2 — Welsh tax on land transactions: consequential amendments

Pack Page 9



Wales Bill 1
Part 1 — The Assembly and Welsh Government

A
BILL
[AS AMENDED IN COMMITTEE]

TO

Make provision about elections to and membership of the National Assembly
for Wales; to make provision about the Welsh Assembly Government; to make
provision about the setting by the Assembly of a rate of income tax to be paid
by Welsh taxpayers and about the devolution of taxation powers to the
Assembly; to make related amendments to Part 4A of the Scotland Act 1998; to
make provision about borrowing by the Welsh Ministers; to make
miscellaneous amendments in the law relating to Wales; and for connected
purposes.

E IT ENACTED by the Queen’s most Excellent Majesty, by and with the advice and
consent of the Lords Spiritual and Temporal, and Commons, in this present
Parliament assembled, and by the authority of the same, as follows: —

PARrT 1

THE ASSEMBLY AND WELSH GOVERNMENT
National Assembly for Wales

1 Frequency of Assembly ordinary general elections

(1) In section 3(1) of GOWA 2006 (date of Assembly ordinary general elections),
for “fourth” substitute “fifth”.

(2) Accordingly, in the Fixed-term Parliaments Act 2011 omit section 5 (date of
next Assembly ordinary general election).

2 Removal of restriction on standing for election for both constituency and

electoral region

(1) GOWA 2006 is amended as follows.

Bill 205 55/3

Pack Page 10

10



Wales Bill
Part 1 — The Assembly and Welsh Government

(2) Insection 7 (candidates at general elections) —
(@) insubsection (5), for paragraph (c) (and the “or” before it) substitute —
“(c) who is a candidate to be the Assembly constituency
member for an Assembly constituency which is not
included in the Assembly electoral region, or
(d) who is a candidate to be the Assembly constituency
member for an Assembly constituency included in the
Assembly electoral region but is not a candidate of the
party.”;
(b) in subsection (6), for paragraph (c) (and the “or” before it) substitute —
“(c) acandidate to be the Assembly constituency member for
an Assembly constituency which is not included in the
Assembly electoral region, or
(d) a candidate of any registered political party to be the
Assembly constituency member for an Assembly
constituency included in the Assembly electoral
region.”

(3) Insection 9 (allocation of seats to electoral region members) —
(@) in subsection (4), after “as an” insert “Assembly constituency member

99,

or’”;

(b) in subsection (5), at the end insert “(disregarding anyone already
returned as an Assembly constituency member, including anyone
whose return is void)”;

(c) insubsection (6), for the words from “by the return” to “(2)” substitute
“(by the return of persons included on it as Assembly constituency
members or by the previous application of subsection (1) or (2))”.

(4) Insection 11(8) (electoral region vacancies) —
(@) for paragraphs (a) to (c) substitute —
“(a) was returned as an Assembly member at that election
(even if the return was void), or

(b) has subsequently been returned under section 10 or this
section (even if the return was void),”;

(b) in the words after paragraph (c) omit “, or of the successful candidate
at the election,”.

MPs to be disqualified from membership of Assembly

(1) In section 16(1) of GOWA 2006 (disqualification from being Assembly
member), before paragraph (a) insert—

“(za) is a member of the House of Commons (but see sections 17A
and 17B),”.

(2) After section 17 of that Act insert—

“17A Exception from disqualification by virtue of being an MP: recently
elected members

(I) A person returned at an election as an Assembly member is not
disqualified under section 16(1)(za) (disqualification by virtue of being
an MP) at any time in the period of 8 days beginning with the day the
person is so returned.

(2) Subsection (3) applies where a person—

Pack Page 11

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45



Wiales Bill

Part 1 — The Assembly and Welsh Government

17B

(1)

(@) 1isreturned at an election as an Assembly member,

(b) on being so returned is a candidate for election to the House of
Commons, and

(c) 1is subsequently returned at that election as a member of that
House.

The person is not disqualified under section 16(1)(za) at any time in the
period of 8 days beginning with the day the person is returned as a
member of the House of Commons.

A person is a “candidate for election to the House of Commons” if the
person’s nomination paper for election as a member of the House of
Commons has been delivered to the returning officer under rule 6 of
Schedule 1 to the Representation of the People Act 1983 (parliamentary
election rules).

Exception from disqualification by virtue of being an MP: general
election of Assembly members within 372 days

This section applies if —

(@) an Assembly member is returned as a member of the House of
Commons, and

(b) the expected day of the next general election of Assembly
members is within the period of 372 days beginning with the
day the person is so returned (“the return day”).

The member is not disqualified under section 16(1)(za) (disqualification
by virtue of being an MP) at any time in the period —

(@) beginning with the return day, and

(b) ending immediately before the day of the next general election
of Assembly members.

For the purposes of subsection (1)(b) the expected day of the next
general election of Assembly members is to be determined by reference
to the circumstances as at the beginning of the return day (“the relevant
time”).

Where, at the relevant time, section 5(2) or (3) (extraordinary general
elections) applies —

(@) if an Order in Council under section 5(4) has been made, the
expected day is the day on which the poll is required to be held
in accordance with that Order;

(b) if no Order in Council under section 5(4) has been made but a
day has been proposed under section 5(1), that is the expected
day;

(c) otherwise, the expected day is to be treated as being within the
period mentioned in subsection (1)(b).

For the purpose of determining the expected day, no account is to be
taken of the possibility of —

(@) an order under section 4 (power to vary date of ordinary
general election) being made after the relevant time, or

(b) section 5(2) or (3) (extraordinary general elections) first
applying after that time.

Pack Page 12

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45



4 Wales Bill
Part 1 — The Assembly and Welsh Government

(6) References in this section to the “day” of the election are to the day on
which the poll at the election is held.”

(3) The National Assembly for Wales (Representation of the People) Order 2007
(S.I1. 2007 /236) is amended as follows.

(4) In article 34 (false statements in nomination papers), at the end of paragraph
(5)(c) insert “or to the best of his knowledge and belief he is disqualified only
under section 16(1)(za) of the 2006 Act (disqualification of MPs)”.

() In Schedule 5 (Assembly election rules), in rule 9(4)(c)(ii) (consent to
nomination) after “Assembly” insert “or that to the best of his knowledge and

belief he is disqualified for membership of the Assembly only under section
16(1)(za) of the 2006 Act (disqualification of MPs)”.

Welsh Government

4 The Welsh Government

(1) The Welsh Assembly Government is renamed the Welsh Government, or
Llywodraeth Cymru.

(2) Accordingly, in GOWA 2006 —

(@) omit “Assembly” wherever it occurs in the expression “Welsh
Assembly Government”;

(b) omit “Cynulliad” where it occurs in section 45(1) (in both places).

(3) In the following sections of GOWA 2006, as amended by subsection (2), the
references to the Welsh Government include, in relation to any time before the
coming into force of this section, references to the Welsh Assembly
Government —

(@) section 37(5) (power to impose requirements on current or former
members of staff of the Government);

(b) section 52(7)(a) and (8) (power to pay pensions in respect of current or
former members of staff of the Government).

(4) Unless the context requires otherwise, in any enactment, instrument or other
document passed or made before the date on which this section comes into
force (except GOWA 2006 - as to which see subsections (2) and (3)) —

(@) any reference to the Welsh Assembly Government is to be read as, or as
including, a reference to the Welsh Government, and

(b) any reference to Llywodraeth Cynulliad Cymru is to be read as, or as
including, a reference to Llywodraeth Cymru.

5 First Minister: removal of power to designate after dissolution of Assembly

In section 46 of GOWA 2006 (the First Minister), at the end of subsection (5)(c)
(designation if First Minister ceases to be Assembly member) insert “otherwise
than by reason of a dissolution”.

Pack Page 13

10

15

20

25

30

35



Wiales Bill

Part 2 — Finance

PART 2

FINANCE

Introductory

6 Taxation: introductory
(1) GOWA 2006 is amended as follows.
(2) After Part 4 insert—

“PART 4A

TAXATION

CHAPTER 1

INTRODUCTORY

116 A Overview of Part 4A

(1)

@)

®)

(4)

In this Part Chapters 3 and 4 specify the taxes about which the
Assembly may make provision in the exercise of the power conferred
by section 107(1).

The power to make provision about a devolved tax is subject to the
restrictions imposed by —

(@) subsection (3), and
(b) the other provisions of this Part.

A devolved tax may not be imposed where to do so would be
incompatible with any international obligations.

In this Act “devolved tax” means a tax specified in this Part as a
devolved tax.

116B Status of officials of body that collects and manages devolved taxes

1)

This section applies where an Act of the Assembly establishes a body
that is to be responsible for the collection and management of devolved
taxes (whether or not the body is also to be responsible for local
government finance or any other matter).

In this section “relevant official” means an officer or member of staff of
the body mentioned in subsection (1) who has no functions other than
functions relating to—

(@) the collection or management of devolved taxes, or

(b) local government finance.

If an Act of the Assembly provides that service as a relevant official is
service in the civil service of the State, that provision is treated as falling
within section 108(4) or (5) (legislative competence).

In subsections (5) to (7), “relevant civil servant” means a relevant
official whose service is service in the civil service of the State by virtue
of provision of the kind mentioned in subsection (3).

Pack Page 14

10

15

20

25

30

35



Wiales Bill
Part 2 — Finance

(5) The Welsh Ministers must pay the salaries and expenses of relevant
civil servants.

(6) The Welsh Ministers must make payments to the Minister for the Civil
Service, at such times as the Minister for the Civil Service may
determine, of such amounts as may be so determined in respect of —

(@) the provision of pensions, allowances or gratuities by virtue of
section 1 of the Superannuation Act 1972 or section 1 of the
Public Service Pensions Act 2013 to or in respect of persons who
are or have been relevant civil servants, and

(b) the expenses incurred in administering those pensions,
allowances and gratuities.

7) The Welsh Ministers may make payments towards the provision of
y pay p
pensions, allowances or gratuities to or in respect of any person who is
or has been a relevant civil servant.

116C Power to add new devolved taxes

(1) Her Majesty may by Order in Council amend this Part so as to—
(@) specify, as an additional devolved tax, a tax of any description,
or

(b) make any other modifications of the provisions relating to
devolved taxes which She considers appropriate.

(2) An Order in Council under this section may make such modifications
of —
(@) any enactment (including any enactment comprised in or made
under this Act) or prerogative instrument, or
(b) any other instrument or document,

as Her Majesty considers appropriate in connection with the provision
made by the Order.

(3) No recommendation is to be made to Her Majesty in Council to make
an Order in Council under this section unless a draft of the statutory
instrument containing the Order has been laid before, and approved by
a resolution of, each House of Parliament and the Assembly.

(4) The amendment of this Part by an Order in Council under this section
does not affect—
(@) the validity of an Act of the Assembly passed before the
amendment comes into force, or
(b) the previous or continuing operation of such an Act of the
Assembly.”

(3) Insection 108 (legislative competence of the Assembly)—
(@) insubsection (4)(a), after “Schedule 7 and” insert **, subject to subsection
(4A),”;
(b) after subsection (4) insert—

“(4A) Provisionrelating to a devolved tax (as listed under the heading
“Taxation” in Part 1 of Schedule 7) is not outside the Assembly’s
legislative competence by reason only of the fact that it falls
within an exception specified under another heading in that
Part of that Schedule.”

Pack Page 15

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45



Wales Bill 7
Part 2 — Finance

In section 111 (proceedings on Bills), in subsection (8), for “and 116(3)”
substitute “, 116(3) and 116C(4)”.

In section 158(2) (references to enactments), after “109(2)” insert “, 116C(2)”.

In section 159 (index of defined expressions), at the appropriate place insert—

“devolved tax section 116A(4)”.

Part 1 of Schedule 7 (legislative competence to make Acts of the Assembly) is
amended as follows.

In paragraph 4 (economic development), in the first exception, after “Fiscal,
economic and monetary policy” insert “(except so far as relating to devolved
taxes)”.

After paragraph 16 insert—
“Taxation

16A Devolved taxes (as defined in section 116A(4)).”

Amendments relating to the Commissioners for Revenue and Customs

In section 1(1) of the Customs and Excise Management Act 1979
(interpretation), in the definition of “assigned matter”, after “the Scotland Act
1998” insert “or the Government of Wales Act 2006”.

The Commissioners for Revenue and Customs Act 2005 is amended in
accordance with subsections (3) to (13).

In section 15 (agency), after subsection (2) insert—

“(3) For the purposes of section 83 of the Government of Wales Act 2006
purp
(agency arrangements) —
(@) the Commissioners are to be treated as a relevant authority, and

(b) the officers of Revenue and Customs are to be treated as a
relevant authority.”

Accordingly, the heading to that section becomes “Agency: Scotland, Northern
Ireland and Wales”.

In section 17(5) (use of information), in paragraph (a), after “Act,” insert —

“(aa) an Act of the National Assembly for Wales or an instrument
made under such an Act,”.

Section 18 (confidentiality) is amended in accordance with subsections (7) to
©)-
In subsection (2) —
(@) omit “or” at the end of paragraph (h);
(b) after paragraph (i) insert *, or
() whichis made to the Welsh Ministers in connection with

the collection and management of a devolved tax within
the meaning of the Government of Wales Act 2006.”

Pack Page 16

10

15

20

25

30

35



Wiales Bill
Part 2 — Finance

(11)

(12)

(13)

2

In subsection (2A), after “subsection (2)(i)” insert “or (j)

In subsection (4)(e), in sub-paragraph (i), after “Act,” insert—
“(ia) an Act of the National Assembly for Wales or an
instrument made under such an Act,”.

In section 40(11) (confidentiality), in paragraph (a), after “Act,” insert—

“(aa) an Act of the National Assembly for Wales or an instrument
made under such an Act,”.

Section 51 (interpretation) is amended in accordance with subsections (12) and
(13).

In subsection (1), in the definition of “enactment”, after paragraph (b) insert—
“(ba) an Act of the National Assembly for Wales,

(bb) an instrument made under an Act of the National Assembly for
Wales,”.

After subsection (2A) insert—

“(2B) Nor does such a reference include a function which—

(@) 1is conferred on the Commissioners or on officers of Revenue
and Customs by or by virtue of an Act of the National Assembly
for Wales or an instrument made under such an Act, and

(b) relates to a devolved tax within the meaning of the Government
of Wales Act 2006.”

In Schedule 7 to GOWA 2006 (legislative competence to make Acts of the
Assembly) —

(a) in Part 2 (general restrictions), after paragraph 4, insert—

“4A A provision of an Act of the Assembly cannot—

(@) remove or modify, or confer power by subordinate
legislation, to remove or modify, any function of Her
Majesty’s Revenue and Customs, or

(b) confer or impose, or confer power by subordinate
legislation to confer or impose, any function on Her
Majesty’s Revenue and Customs.”;

(b) in Part 3 (exceptions from Part 2), after paragraph 7, insert—
“Her Majesty’s Revenue and Customs

7A (1) Part 2 does not prevent a provision of an Act of the
Assembly —

(@) removing or modifying, or conferring power by
subordinate legislation to remove or modify, any
function of Her Majesty’s Revenue and Customs, or

(b) conferring or imposing, or conferring power by
subordinate legislation to confer or impose, any
function on Her Majesty’s Revenue and Customs,

if the following conditions are met.

(2) The conditions are—
(@) that the function relates to a devolved tax, and
(b) that the Treasury consent to the provision.”

Pack Page 17

10

15

20

25

30

35

40



Wales Bill 9
Part 2 — Finance

Welsh rate of income tax

8 Welsh rate of income tax
(1) Part4A of GOWA 2006 (as inserted by section 6) is amended as follows.

(2) Insection116A(1) (overview), after “Part” insert “—

(@) Chapter 2 confers on the Assembly power to set a rate of income
tax to be paid by Welsh taxpayers, and

(b) ’,‘
(3) After Chapter 1 insert—
“CHAPTER 2

INCOME TAX

116D Power to set Welsh rate for Welsh taxpayers

(1) The Assembly may by resolution (a “Welsh rate resolution”) set the
Welsh rate for the purpose of calculating the rates of income tax to be
paid by Welsh taxpayers.

(2) See section 6B of the Income Tax Act 2007 for provision about the
calculation of those rates and section 11B of that Act for provision about
the income charged at those rates.

(3) A Welsh rate resolution applies —
(@) for only one tax year, and
(b) for the whole of that year.

(4) A Welsh rate resolution may specify only one rate.
(5) The Welsh rate must be a whole number or half a whole number.

(6) A Welsh rate resolution—
(@) must specify the tax year for which it applies,
(b) must be made before the start of that tax year, and

(c) must not be made more than 12 months before the start of that
year.

(7) If a Welsh rate resolution is cancelled before the start of the tax year for
which it is to apply —
(@) the Income Tax Acts have effect for that year as if the resolution
had never been made, and

(b) the resolution may be replaced by another Welsh rate
resolution.

(8) The standing orders must provide that only the First Minister or a
Welsh Minister appointed under section 48 may move a motion for a
Welsh rate resolution.

116E Welsh taxpayers

(1) For any tax year, a Welsh taxpayer is an individual (T) —

(@) who is resident in the UK for income tax purposes for that year
(see Schedule 45 to the Finance Act 2013), and

Pack Page 18

10

15

20

25

30

35

40



10 Wales Bill
Part 2 — Finance

(b) who, for that year, meets condition A, B or C.

(2) T meets condition A if T has a close connection with Wales (see section
116G).

(3) T meets condition B if —

(@) T does not have a close connection with England, Scotland or
Northern Ireland (see section 116G), and

(b) T spends more days of that year in Wales than in any other part
of the UK (see section 116H).

(4) T meets condition C if, for the whole or any part of the year, T is—
(@) amember of Parliament for a constituency in Wales,
(b) amember of the European Parliament for Wales, or
(c) an Assembly member.

(5) Subsection (1) does not apply if T is a Scottish parliamentarian for the
whole or any part of the year (see section 116F).

(6) For the purposes of subsection (5) and section 116F, T is a Scottish
parliamentarian if T is a member as described in any of paragraphs (a)
to (c) of section 80D(4) of the Scotland Act 1998 (definition of a Scottish
taxpayer).

(7) In this Chapter “the UK” means the United Kingdom.
116F Welsh taxpayers: Scottish parliamentarians

(1) An individual (T) who is a Scottish parliamentarian for the whole or
any part of a tax year is a Welsh taxpayer for that tax year if —

(@) Tisresidentin the UK for income tax purposes for that year (see
Schedule 45 to the Finance Act 2013),

(b) T meets condition C in section 116E for that year, and
(c) T meets either of the following conditions for that year.

(2) T meets the first condition if —

(@) the number of days in that year on which T is a member as
described in any of paragraphs (a) to (c) of section 116E(4),

exceeds

(b) the number of days in that year on which T is a Scottish
parliamentarian.

(3) T meets the second condition if —

(@) the number of days in that year mentioned in paragraphs (a)
and (b) of subsection (2) are the same, and

(b) T meets condition A or B in section 116E for that year.
116G Close connection with Wales or another part of the UK

(1) To find whether, for any year, T has a close connection with any part of

the UK see—
(@) subsection (2) (where T has only one place of residence in the
UK), or
(b) subsection (3) (where T has 2 or more places of residence in the
UK).

(2) T has a close connection with a part of the UK if in that year —

Pack Page 19

10

15

20

25

30

35

40



Wales Bill 11
Part 2 — Finance

(@) T has only one place of residence in the UK,
(b) that place of residence is in that part of the UK, and
(c) for atleast part of the year, T lives at that place.

(3) T has a close connection with a part of the UK if in that year —

(@) T has 2 or more places of residence in the UK,

(b) for atleast part of the year, T’s main place of residence in the UK
is in that part of the UK,

(c) the times in the year when T’s main place of residence is in that
part of the UK comprise (in aggregate) more of the year than the
times when T’s main place of residence is in each other part of
the UK (considered separately), and

(d) for at least part of the year, T lives at a place of residence in that
part of the UK.

(4) Inthis section “place” includes a place on board a vessel or other means
of transport.

116H Days spent in Wales or another part of the UK

(1) T spends more days of a year in Wales than in any other part of the UK
if (and only if) the number of days in the year on which T is in Wales at
the end of the day exceeds each of the following —

(@) the number of days in the year on which T is in England at the
end of the day;

(b) the number of days in the year on which T is in Scotland at the
end of the day;

(c) the number of days in the year on which T is in Northern
Ireland at the end of the day.

(2) Tis treated as not being in the UK at the end of a day if —
(@) onthatday T arrives in the UK as a passenger,
(b) T departs from the UK on the next day, and
(c) during the time between arrival and departure T does not

engage in activities which are to a substantial extent unrelated
to T’s passage through the UK.

1161 Supplemental powers to modify enactments

(1) The Treasury may by order modify section 11B of the Income Tax Act
2007 (income charged at the Welsh basic, higher and additional rates)
for the purpose of altering —

(@) the definition of the income which is charged to income tax at
the rates provided for under the section, or

(b) the application of the section in relation to a particular class of
income which is so charged.

(2) The Treasury may by order modify any enactment not contained in
Chapter 2 of Part 2 of the Income Tax Act 2007 (rates at which income
tax is charged) so that it makes provision, in relation to a Welsh
taxpayer, by reference to the Welsh basic rate, the Welsh higher rate or
the Welsh additional rate, instead of the basic rate, the higher rate or the
additional rate.

(3) If the Treasury consider it necessary or expedient to do so, they may by
order provide that—

Pack Page 20

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45



12

Wiales Bill
Part 2 — Finance

(@) the Welsh rate set by the Assembly for a tax year, or
(b) the fact that the Welsh rate has not been so set for a tax year,

does not require any change in the amounts repayable or deductible
under PAYE regulations between the beginning of that year and such
later date as may be specified in the order.

(4) The Treasury may by order make such modifications of any enactment
as they consider necessary or expedient in consequence of or in
connection with an order under subsection (1), (2) or (3).

(5) An order under this section may, to the extent that the Treasury
consider it to be appropriate, take effect retrospectively from the
beginning of the tax year in which the order is made.

(6) No order is to be made under subsection (1), (2) or (4) unless a draft of
the statutory instrument containing it has been laid before, and
approved by a resolution of, the House of Commons.

(7) A statutory instrument containing an order under subsection (3) is
subject to annulment in pursuance of a resolution of the House of
Commons.

(8) The power under subsection (1) does not include power to provide that
any income which is—
(@) savings income, or
(b) dividend income which would otherwise be charged to income
tax at a rate provided for under section 13 of the Income Tax Act
2007,
is income which is charged to income tax at a rate provided for under
section 11B of that Act.

116] Reimbursement of expenses

The Welsh Ministers may reimburse any Minister of the Crown or
government department for administrative expenses incurred by
virtue of this Chapter at any time after the passing of the Wales Act 2014
by the Minister or department.

116K Report by the Comptroller and Auditor General

(1) The Comptroller and Auditor General must for each financial year
prepare a report on the matters set out in subsection (2).

(2) Those matters are—

(@) the adequacy of any of HMRC’s rules and procedures put in
place, in consequence of the Welsh rate provisions, for the
purpose of ensuring the proper assessment and collection of
income tax charged at rates determined under those provisions,

(b) whether the rules and procedures described in paragraph (a)
are being complied with,

(c) the correctness of the sums brought to account by HMRC which
relate to income tax which is attributable to a Welsh rate
resolution, and

(d) the accuracy and fairness of the amounts which are reimbursed
to HMRC under section 116] (having been identified by it as
administrative expenses incurred as a result of the charging of
income tax as mentioned in paragraph (a)).

Pack Page 21

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45



Wales Bill 13
Part 2 — Finance

(3) The “Welsh rate provisions” are —
(@) any provision made by or under this Chapter, and

(b) any provision made by or under the Income Tax Acts relating to
the Welsh basic rate, the Welsh higher rate or the Welsh
additional rate.

(4) A report under this section may also include an assessment of the
economy, efficiency and effectiveness with which HMRC has used its
resources in carrying out relevant functions.

(®) “Relevant functions” are functions of HMRC in the performance of
which HMRC incurs administrative expenses which are reimbursed to
HMRC under section 116] (having been identified by it as
administrative expenses incurred as a result of the charging of income
tax as mentioned in subsection (2)(a)).

(6) HMRC must give the Comptroller and Auditor General such
information as the Comptroller and Auditor General may reasonably
require for the purposes of preparing a report under this section.

(7) Areport prepared under this section must be laid before the Assembly
not later than 31 January of the financial year following that to which
the report relates.

(8) In this section “HMRC” means Her Majesty’s Revenue and Customs.”

Welsh basic, higher and additional rates of income tax
(1) TheIncome Tax Act 2007 is amended in accordance with subsections (2) to (11).

(2) In section 6 (the basic rate, higher rate and additional rate), in subsection (3),
before paragraph (a) insert—
“(zb) section 6B (Welsh basic, higher and additional rates),”.

(3) Before section 7 insert—
“6B The Welsh basic, higher and additional rates

(1) The Welsh basic rate, the Welsh higher rate and the Welsh additional
rate for a tax year are calculated as follows.

Step 1

Take the basic rate, higher rate or additional rate.

Step 2

Deduct 10 percentage points.

Step 3

Add the Welsh rate (if any) set by the National Assembly for Wales for
that year.

(2) For provision about the setting of the Welsh rate, see Chapter 2 of Part
4A of the Government of Wales Act 2006.”

(4) In section 10 (income charged at the basic, higher and additional rates:
individuals), in subsection (4), at the appropriate place, insert—

“section 11B (income charged at the Welsh basic, higher and additional
rates),”.

Pack Page 22

10

15

20

25

30

35

40



14 Wales Bill
Part 2 — Finance

(5) Before section 12 insert—
“11B Income charged at the Welsh basic, higher and additional rates

(1) Income tax is charged at the Welsh basic rate on the income of a Welsh
taxpayer which—
(@) is non-savings income, and
(b) would otherwise be charged at the basic rate.

(2) Income taxis charged at the Welsh higher rate on the income of a Welsh
taxpayer which—
(@) 1is non-savings income, and
(b) would otherwise be charged at the higher rate.

(3) Income tax is charged at the Welsh additional rate on the income of a
Welsh taxpayer which —

(@) is non-savings income, and
(b) would otherwise be charged at the additional rate.

(4) For the purposes of this section, “non-savings income” means income
which is not savings income.

(5) This section is subject to—
section 13 (income charged at the dividend ordinary, upper and
additional rates: individuals), and
any provisions of the Income Tax Acts (apart from section 10)
which provide for income of an individual to be charged at
different rates of income tax in some circumstances.

(6) Section 16 has effect for determining the extent to which the non-
savings income of a Welsh taxpayer would otherwise be charged at the
basic, higher or additional rate.”

(6) Insection 13 (income charged at the dividend ordinary, upper and additional
rates) —

(@) insubsection (1)(b), before “and” insert “or the Welsh basic rate,”,

(b) in subsection (2)(b), before “and” insert “or the Welsh higher rate,”,

(c) in subsection (2A)(b), before “and” insert “or the Welsh additional
rate,”,

(d) insubsection (3), at the end of the words in parenthesis, insert “or 11B”,
and

(e) in subsection (4), at the end insert “or the Welsh basic, higher or
additional rate”.

(7) Insection 16 (savings and dividend income to be treated as highest part of total
income), in subsection (1), after paragraph (za) insert—
“(zb) the rate at which income tax would be charged on the non-
savings income of a Welsh taxpayer apart from section 11B,”.

(8) Insection 809H (charge on nominated income of long-term UK resident), after
subsection (3A) insert —

“(3B) If the individual is a Welsh taxpayer for the relevant tax year, the
individual is to be treated for the purpose of calculating income tax
charged by virtue of subsection (2) as if the individual were not a Welsh
taxpayer for that year.”

Pack Page 23

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45



Wales Bill 15
Part 2 — Finance

©)

(10)

(11)

10

In section 828B (conditions to be met for exemption where individual resident
but not domiciled in the UK), in subsection (5), before “or the starting rate”
insert *, the Welsh basic rate”.

In section 989 (definitions for the purposes of the Income Tax Acts), at the
appropriate place, insert —
““Welsh additional rate” means the rate of income tax of that name
calculated in accordance with section 6B,”,

““Welsh basic rate” means the rate of income tax of that name calculated
in accordance with section 6B,”,

““Welsh higher rate” means the rate of income tax of that name calculated
in accordance with section 6B,”,

““Welsh taxpayer” has the same meaning as in Chapter 2 of Part 4A of the
Government of Wales Act 2006”.

In Schedule 4 (index of defined expressions), at the appropriate place, insert—

“Welsh additional rate section 6B (as applied by
section 989)”

“Welsh basic rate section 6B (as applied by
section 989)”

“Welsh higher rate section 6B (as applied by
section 989)”

“Welsh taxpayer section 989”

In section 7 of the Taxes Management Act 1970 (notice of liability to income tax
and capital gains tax), in subsection (6), before “the dividend ordinary rate”
insert “the Welsh basic rate,”.

The Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992 is amended in accordance with
subsections (14) and (15).

In section 4 (rates of capital gains tax), in subsections (4) and (5), before “or the
dividend” insert *, the Welsh higher rate”.

In section 4A (section 4: special cases), in subsection (5), before “or the
dividend” insert *, the Welsh higher rate”.

Amendments to the definition of a Scottish taxpayer

Chapter 2 of Part 4A of the Scotland Act 1998 (Scottish rate of income tax) is
amended as follows.

Section 80D (Scottish taxpayers) is amended in accordance with subsections (3)
to (5).
In subsection (1) —

(@) for “In” substitute “For”;

(b) in paragraph (a), after “purposes” insert “for that year (see Schedule 45
to the Finance Act 2013)”.

In subsection (3)(a), for “any part of the UK other than Scotland” substitute
“England, Wales or Northern Ireland”.

Pack Page 24

10

15

20

25

30

35

40



16 Wales Bill
Part 2 — Finance

(5) After subsection (4), insert—

“(4A) Subsection (1) does not apply if T is a Welsh parliamentarian for the
whole or any part of the year (see section 80DA).

(4B) For the purposes of subsection (4A) and section 80DA, T is a Welsh
parliamentarian if T is a member as described in any of paragraphs (a)
to (c) of section 116E(4) of the Government of Wales Act 2006
(definition of a Welsh taxpayer).”

(6) After section 80D insert—
“80DA Scottish taxpayers: Welsh parliamentarians

(1) Anindividual (T) who is a Welsh parliamentarian for the whole or any
part of a tax year is a Scottish taxpayer for that tax year if —

(@) Tisresidentin the UK for income tax purposes for that year (see
Schedule 45 to the Finance Act 2013),

(b) T meets condition C in section 80D for that year, and
(c) T meets either of the following conditions for that year.

(2) T meets the first condition if —

(@) the number of days in that year on which T is a member as
described in any of paragraphs (a) to (c) of section 80D(4),
exceeds

(b) the number of days in that year on which T is a Welsh
parliamentarian.

(3) T meets the second condition if —

(@) the number of days in that year mentioned in paragraphs (a)
and (b) of subsection (2) are the same, and

(b) T meets condition A or B in section 80D for that year.”

(7) In section 80E (close connection with Scotland or another part of the UK), in
subsection (3)(c) —

(@) for “atleast as much of the year as” substitute “more of the year than”;

(b) for “any one other part of the UK” substitute “each other part of the UK
(considered separately)”.

(8) Insection 80F (days spent in Scotland or another part of the UK) —

(@) insubsection (1), for the words from “if) —” to the end substitute “if) the
number of days in the year on which T is in Scotland at the end of the
day exceeds each of the following —

(@) the number of days in the year on which T is in England
at the end of the day;

(b) the number of days in the year on which T is in Wales at
the end of the day;

(c) thenumber of days in the year on which T is in Northern
Ireland at the end of the day.”;

(b) in subsection (2), for “But T is not to be treated as” substitute “T is
treated as not”.

Pack Page 25

10

15

20

25

30

35

40



Wales Bill 17
Part 2 — Finance

11
1)

2)

(®)

12
(1)

Referendum on income tax provisions

Referendum about commencement of income tax provisions

Her Majesty may by Order in Council cause a referendum to be held
throughout Wales about whether the income tax provisions should come into
force.

If the majority of the voters in a referendum held by virtue of subsection (1)
vote in favour of the income tax provisions coming into force, those provisions
are to come into force in accordance with section 13.

But if they do not, that does not prevent the making of a subsequent Order
under subsection (1).

No recommendation is to be made to Her Majesty to make an Order under
subsection (1) unless a draft of the statutory instrument containing the Order
has been laid before, and approved by a resolution of, each House of
Parliament and the Assembly.

But subsection (4) is not satisfied unless the resolution of the Assembly is
passed on a vote in which the number of Assembly members voting in favour
of it is not less than two-thirds of the total number of Assembly seats.

A draft of a statutory instrument containing an Order under subsection (1) may
not be laid before either House of Parliament, or the Assembly, until the
Secretary of State has undertaken such consultation as the Secretary of State
considers appropriate.

For further provision about a referendum held by virtue of subsection (1), see
Schedule 1.

In this section “the income tax provisions” means sections 8 and 9.

Proposal for referendum by Assembly

This section applies if —

(@) the First Minister or a Welsh Minister appointed under section 48 of
GOWA 2006 moves a resolution in the Assembly that, in the
Assembly’s opinion, a recommendation should be made to Her
Majesty to make an Order under section 11(1), and

(b) the Assembly passes the resolution on a vote in which the number of
Assembly members voting in favour of it is not less than two-thirds of
the total number of Assembly seats.

The First Minister must, as soon as practicable after the resolution is passed,
ensure that notice in writing of the resolution is given to the Secretary of State.

Within the period of 180 days beginning immediately after the day on which
notice under subsection (2) is received by the Secretary of State —

(@) the Secretary of State or the Lord President of the Council must lay a
draft of a statutory instrument containing an Order under section 11(1)
before each House of Parliament, or

(b) the Secretary of State must give notice in writing to the First Minister of
the refusal to lay a draft under paragraph (a) and the reasons for that
refusal.

Pack Page 26

10

15

20

25

30

35

40



18

Wiales Bill
Part 2 — Finance

4)

13
(1)

)
®)

14
(1)

As soon as practicable after the First Minister receives notice under subsection
3)(b)—
(@) the First Minister must lay a copy of the notice before the Assembly,
and

(b) the Assembly must ensure that the notice is published.

Commencement of the income tax provisions etc if majority in favour

This section applies where the majority of the voters in a referendum held by
virtue of section 11(1) vote in favour of the income tax provisions coming into
force.

The Treasury may bring sections 8 and 9 into force by order.

An order under subsection (2) —

(@) must appoint, in relation to each provision inserted by section 8 or 9,
the day on which it comes into force;

(b) may provide that a provision inserted by section 8 or 9 has effect in
relation to—

(i) ataxyear appointed by the order and subsequent tax years, or
(ii) afinancial year so appointed and subsequent financial years.

A tax year may be appointed under subsection (3)(b) in relation to a provision
inserted by section 8 or 9 only if the tax year begins on or after the day
appointed under subsection (3)(a) in relation to that provision.

An order under subsection (2) that brings into force section 116D of GOWA
2006 (power to set Welsh rate for Welsh taxpayers) must appoint the first tax
year in relation to which a Welsh rate resolution may be made.

The Treasury may bring section 10(5), (6), (7)(a) and (8)(a) into force by order.

An order under subsection (6) —

(@) mustappoint a day on which the amendments made by the provisions
mentioned in that subsection come into force, and

b) must provide that those amendments have effect in relation to a tax
p
year appointed by the order and subsequent tax years.

The tax year appointed under subsection (7)(b) —
(@) must begin on or after the day appointed under subsection (7)(a), and

(b) must not precede the tax year appointed under subsection (5) or under
section 25(5) of the Scotland Act 2012 (the first tax year for which
Chapter 2 of Part 4A of the Scotland Act 1998 has effect).

An order under this section may make different provision for different
purposes.

Welsh tax on land transactions

Welsh tax on transactions involving interests in land

In Part 4A of GOWA 2006 (as inserted by section 6), after Chapter 2 (inserted

Pack Page 27

10

15

20

25

30

35



Wales Bill 19
Part 2 — Finance

by section 8) insert—
“CHAPTER 3
TAX ON TRANSACTIONS INVOLVING INTERESTS IN LAND

116L Tax on transactions involving interests in land

(1) A tax which is charged on a Welsh land transaction and complies with
the requirements of this section is a devolved tax.

(2) Inthis Chapter a “Welsh land transaction” means an acquisition of —
(@) an estate, interest, right or power in or over land in Wales;

(b) the benefit of an obligation, restriction or condition affecting the
value of any such estate, interest, right or power.

(3) The tax may be chargeable —
(@) whether or not there is any instrument effecting the transaction,

(b) if there is such an instrument, regardless of where it is executed,
and

(c) regardless of where any party to the transaction is or is resident.

(4) The tax may not be imposed on so much of a Welsh land transaction as
relates to land below mean low water mark.

(5) The following persons are not to be liable to pay the tax—
Government
A Minister of the Crown

The Welsh Ministers, the First Minister and the Counsel
General

The Scottish Ministers
A Northern Ireland department
Parliament etc
The Corporate Officer of the House of Lords
The Corporate Officer of the House of Commons
The Assembly Commission
The Scottish Parliamentary Corporate Body
The Northern Ireland Assembly Commission.”

(2) A devolved tax specified in section 116L of GOWA 2006 (as inserted by this
section) may not be charged under an Act of the Assembly on a land
transaction within the meaning of Part 4 of the Finance Act 2003 unless section
15 (disapplication of UK stamp duty land tax) has effect in relation to that
transaction.

15  Disapplication of UK stamp duty land tax
(1) Part4 of the Finance Act 2003 (stamp duty land tax) is amended as follows.

(2) Insection 48 (chargeable interests), in subsection (1)(a), omit “and Wales”.

(3) Schedule 2 to this Act contains further amendments relating to the
disapplication of stamp duty land tax in relation to Wales.

Pack Page 28

10

15

20

25

30

35

40



20 Wales Bill
Part 2 — Finance

(4) The amendments made by this section and Schedule 2 have effect in relation to
land transactions with an effective date on or after such date as is appointed by
the Treasury by order under this subsection.

(5) But those amendments do not have effect in relation to any transaction—

(a) effected in pursuance of a contract entered into and substantially
performed on or before the date on which this Act is passed, or

(b) effected in pursuance of a contract entered into on or before that date
and not excluded by subsection (6).

(6) A transaction effected in pursuance of a contract entered into on or before the
date on which this Act is passed is excluded if —

(@) there is any variation of the contract, or assignment of rights under the
contract, after that date,

(b) the transaction is effected in consequence of the exercise after that date
of any option, right of pre-emption or similar right, or

(c) after that date there is an assignment, subsale or other transaction
relating to the whole or part of the subject-matter of the contract as a
result of which a person other than the purchaser under the contract
becomes entitled to call for a conveyance.

(7) Expressions used in any of subsections (4) to (6) and in Part 4 of the Finance Act
2003 have the same meaning in those subsections as in that Part.

16 Information on Welsh land transactions

(1) InPart4A of GOWA 2006 (as inserted by section 6), in Chapter 3 (inserted by
section 14), after section 116L insert—

“116M Duty to disclose information on Welsh land transactions to HMRC

(1) A person who is a member of the Welsh Government must provide to
HMRC such of the information falling within subsection (2) as HMRC
may require.

(2) Information falls within this subsection if it—

(@) 1is relevant information in relation to a Welsh land transaction,
and

(b) is in the possession or under the control of the person.

(3) “Relevant information”, in relation to a Welsh land transaction, means
information which—
(@) corresponds to any of the particulars which would be required
under Schedule 2 to the Finance Act 1931, but for section
28(3)(c) of that Act, or
(b) uniquely identifies, or assists in uniquely identifying, any
person who gives consideration for, or is a party to, the
transaction.

(4) Information is to be provided under subsection (1) in such form as
HMRC may reasonably specify.

(5) Information acquired by HMRC under this section is to be treated, for
the purposes of the Commissioners for Revenue and Customs Act 2005,
as acquired in connection with a function of theirs.

(6) In this section, “HMRC” means Her Majesty’s Revenue and Customs.”

Pack Page 29

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45



Wales Bill 21
Part 2 — Finance

(2) This section has effect in relation to land transactions in relation to which
section 15 has effect.

Welsh tax on disposals to landfill

17  Welsh tax on disposals to landfill

(1) InPart4A of GOWA 2006 (as inserted by section 6), after Chapter 3 (inserted
by section 14) insert —

“CHAPTER 4
TAX ON DISPOSALS TO LANDFILL

116N Tax on disposals to landfill
(1) A tax charged on disposals to landfill made in Wales is a devolved tax.

(2) A disposal is a disposal to landfill if —
(a) 1itisa disposal of material as waste, and
(b) it is made by way of landfill.”

(2) A devolved tax specified in section 116N of GOWA 2006 (as inserted by this
section) may not be charged under an Act of the Assembly on a disposal if the

disposal is made before the date appointed under section 18(3) (disapplication
of UK landfill tax).

18  Disapplication of UK landfill tax
(1) Part3 of the Finance Act 1996 (landfill tax) is amended as follows.
(2) Insection 40(1) (charge on taxable disposal), omit “and Wales”.

(38) This section has effect in relation to disposals made on or after such date as is
appointed by the Treasury by order under this subsection.

Borrowing

19  Borrowing by the Welsh Ministers
(1) GOWA 2006 is amended as follows.

(2) Section 121 (borrowing by Welsh Ministers) is amended in accordance with
subsections (3) to (5).

(3) For subsection (1) substitute —

“(1) The Welsh Ministers may borrow from the Secretary of State —
(@) any amounts it appears to them are required by them for the
purpose of meeting a temporary excess of sums paid out of the
Welsh Consolidated Fund over sums paid into that Fund,
(b) any amounts it appears to them are required by them for the
purpose of providing a working balance in the Welsh
Consolidated Fund, and

Pack Page 30

10

15

20

25

30

35



22 Wales Bill
Part 2 — Finance
(c) any amounts which in accordance with rules determined by the
Treasury are required by the Welsh Ministers to meet current
expenditure because of a shortfall in receipts from devolved
taxes, or from income tax charged by virtue of a Welsh rate
resolution, against forecast receipts.

(1A) The Welsh Ministers may, with the approval of the Treasury, borrow
by way of loan any amounts it appears to them are required by them
for the purpose of meeting capital expenditure.

(1B) An amount is required for the purpose of meeting capital expenditure
if the expenditure would be capital expenditure for the purposes of
accounts under section 131.”

(4) Insubsection (2), after “section” insert “from the Secretary of State”.
(5) After subsection (3) insert—
“(4) The Secretary of State may by order made with the consent of the
Treasury amend subsection (1A) so as to vary the means by which the
Welsh Ministers may borrow money.

(5) No order is to be made under subsection (4) unless a draft of the
statutory instrument containing it has been laid before, and approved
by a resolution of, the House of Commons.”

(6) Section 122 (lending by Secretary of State) is amended in accordance with

subsections (7) to (9).

(7) Insubsection (2), for “that section” substitute “section 121(1)”.
(8) Insubsection (3), omit “greater”.
(9) After subsection (3) insert—

“(BA) An amount substituted under subsection (3) may be more or less than
the amount for which it is substituted but may not be less than £500
million.”

(10)  After section 122 insert—

“122A Lending for capital expenditure

(1) The aggregate at any time outstanding in respect of the principal of
amounts borrowed under section 121(1A) shall not exceed £500 million.

(2) The Secretary of State may by order made with the consent of the
Treasury substitute for the amount for the time being specified in
subsection (1) such amount as may be specified in the order.

(3) An amount substituted under subsection (2) may be more or less than
the amount for which it is substituted but may not be less than £500
million.

(4) No order is to be made under subsection (2) unless a draft of the
statutory instrument containing it has been laid before, and approved
by a resolution of, the House of Commons.

(5) A person lending money to a member of the Welsh Government —

(@) 1is not bound to enquire whether the member of the Welsh
Government has power to borrow the money, and

Pack Page 31

10

15

20

25

30

35

40



Wales Bill 23
Part 2 — Finance

(b) isnot to be prejudiced by the absence of any such power.

(6) The Welsh Ministers may not mortgage or charge any of their property
as security for money which they have borrowed under section
121(1A).

This is subject to section 121(3) (charging of sums on the Welsh
Consolidated Fund).

(7) Security given in breach of subsection (6) is unenforceable.”

20  Repeal of existing borrowing power

n Schedule 3 to the Wels evelopment enc ct Orrowing an
1) In Schedule 3 to the Welsh Develop Agency Act 1975 (b ing and
guarantees), the following are repealed —

(@) paragraph 3 (power for Welsh Ministers to borrow money);

(b) paragraph 6 (power for Treasury to guarantee money borrowed under
paragraph 3).

(2) The repeals made by subsection (1) do not affect—

(@) the liability of the Welsh Ministers to repay any money borrowed
under paragraph 3 of that Schedule before the date when that
subsection comes into force, or

(b) any guarantee given under paragraph 6 of that Schedule before that
date.

(3) Subsection (4) applies to the aggregate amount (if any) which, immediately
before subsection (1) comes into force, is outstanding in respect of the principal
of sums borrowed on or after the day on which this Act is passed under
paragraph 3 of that Schedule for the purpose of meeting capital expenditure.

(4) For the purpose of section 122A(1) of GOWA 2006 (limit on capital borrowing),
that amount is treated as outstanding in respect of the principal of sums
borrowed under section 121(1A) of that Act.

(5) An amount is borrowed for the purpose of meeting capital expenditure if the
expenditure would be capital expenditure for the purposes of accounts under
section 131 of GOWA 2006.

Budgetary procedures

21  Budgetary procedures

(1) Schedule 7 to GOWA 2006 (legislative competence to make Acts of the
Assembly) is amended as follows.

(2) In Part 1, in paragraph 13 (National Assembly for Wales), at the end insert
“Budgetary procedures.

“Budgetary procedures” are procedures for a financial year relating
to—
(@) the authorisation of the amount of resources which may be
used or retained in that year by relevant persons or pursuant
to a relevant enactment,

(b) the authorisation of the amount which may be paid out of the
Welsh Consolidated Fund in that year to relevant persons or
for use pursuant to a relevant enactment, or

Pack Page 32

10

15

20

25

30

35

40



24 Wales Bill
Part 2 — Finance

(c) the scrutiny of the use of the amounts so authorised under
paragraph (a) or (b) or of the exercise of borrowing powers by
the Welsh Ministers.

The following are “relevant persons” —
(@) the Welsh Ministers,
(b) the First Minister,
(c) the Counsel General,
(d) the Assembly Commission,
(e) the Wales Audit Office, and
(f) the Public Service Ombudsman for Wales.

A “relevant enactment” is an enactment which provides for payment
out of the Welsh Consolidated Fund.

The reference to the use of resources is a reference to their
expenditure, consumption or reduction in value.”

(3) In Part 2, in paragraph 5 (provisions of GOWA 2006 which may not be

modified) —
(@) in sub-paragraph (2), in paragraph (a), after “78,” insert “120(2), 125 to
128,”;

(b) in sub-paragraph (2), after paragraph (a) insert—

“(aa) section 119 in so far as it relates to estimated payments
for a financial year into the Welsh Consolidated Fund or
to the Welsh Ministers, the First Minister or the Counsel
General;”;

(c) after sub-paragraph (4), insert—

“(4A) Sub-paragraph (1), so far as it applies in relation to a
provision of Part 5 or section 159, does not apply to a
provision of an Act of the Assembly if —

(@) the provision is incidental to, or consequential on, a
provision of an Act of the Assembly relating to
budgetary procedures or devolved taxes, and

(b) the Secretary of State consents to the provision.

(4B) Insub-paragraph (4A), “budgetary procedures” has the same
meaning as in paragraph 13 of Part 1 of this Schedule.”

Reports

22 Reports on the implementation and operation of this Part

(1) The Secretary of State must—

(@) make reports on the implementation and operation of this Part (see
subsection (7)),

(b) lay a copy of each report before each House of Parliament, and

(c) send acopy of each report to the Welsh Ministers, who must lay a copy
of it before the Assembly.

(2) The Welsh Ministers must—

(@) make reports on the implementation and operation of this Part (see
subsection (7)),

Pack Page 33

10

15

20

25

30

35

40



Wales Bill 25
Part 2 — Finance

(©)

(®)

©)

(b) lay a copy of each report before the Assembly, and

(c) send acopy of each report to the Secretary of State, who must lay a copy
of it before each House of Parliament.

A report must be made under each of subsections (1) and (2) —
(@) Dbefore the first anniversary of the day on which this Act is passed, and

(b) thereafter, before each subsequent anniversary of that day until the
final reports are made under subsection (4).

Final reports must be made on, or as soon as practicable after, the first
anniversary of the day on which the last of the provisions of this Part is
implemented (as determined under subsections (5) and (6)).

A provision of this Part is implemented —

(@) if it is expressed as applying in relation to events occurring on or after
a particular day, on that day;

(b) if it is expressed as applying in relation to a tax year or financial year,
on the last day of that year;

(c) inany other case, on the day on which it comes into force.

If, in the case of any provision, the application of subsection (5) gives more than
one day, the provision is implemented on the last of them.

A report on the implementation and operation of this Part must include —

(a) astatement of the steps that have been taken, whether by the maker of
the report or by others, since the making of the previous report (or, in
the case of the first report, since the passing of this Act) towards
implementation of the provisions of this Part,

(b) astatement of the steps that the maker of the report proposes should be
taken, whether by the maker of the report or by others, towards the
implementation of the provisions of this Part,

(c) an assessment of the operation of the provisions of this Part that have
been implemented,

(d) anassessment of the operation of any other powers to devolve taxes to
the Assembly or to change the powers of the Welsh Ministers to borrow
money, and of any other changes affecting the provisions inserted or
amended by this Part,

(e) a statement of the effect of this Part on the amount of any payments
made by the Secretary of State under section 118 of GOWA 2006
(payments into the Welsh Consolidated Fund), and

(f) any other matters concerning the sources of revenue for the Welsh
Government that the maker of the report considers should be brought
to the attention of Parliament or the Assembly.

Until the majority of the voters in a referendum held by virtue of section 11(1)
vote in favour of sections 8 and 9 (income tax provisions) coming into force, the
statements required by subsection (7)(a) and (b) do not include steps taken, or
proposed to be taken, towards the implementation of those provisions.

In this section, references to “this Part” do not include —
(@) section 10 (amendments to the definition of a Scottish taxpayer), or
(b) section 21 (budgetary procedures).

Pack Page 34

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45



26

Wiales Bill
Part 3 — Miscellaneous

23
1

(2)

PART 3

MISCELLANEOUS

Local housing authorities: limits on housing revenue account debt

Part 6 of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989 (housing finance) is
amended as follows.

After section 76 insert —

“76A Limits on indebtedness

1)

The Treasury may from time to time make a determination providing
for the maximum amount of housing debt that may be held, in
aggregate, by local housing authorities in Wales that keep a Housing
Revenue Account.

The Welsh Ministers may from time to time make a determination
providing for the calculation in relation to each such authority of —

(@) the amount of housing debt that, at such time and on such
assumptions as the Welsh Ministers may determine, is to be
treated as held by the authority, and

(b) the maximum amount of such housing debt that the authority
may hold.

The Welsh Ministers must make a determination under subsection (2)
in relation to each authority within the period of 6 months beginning
immediately after the day on which the Treasury makes a
determination under subsection (1).

The aggregate of the amounts determined under subsection (2)(b) must
not exceed the amount determined under subsection (1).

A local housing authority may not hold debt in contravention of a
determination under subsection (2)(b).

A determination under this section may, in particular, provide for all or
part of an amount to be calculated in accordance with a formula or
formulae.

A determination under this section may provide for assumptions to be
made in making a calculation whether or not those assumptions are, or
are likely to be, borne out by events.

As soon as practicable after making a determination under subsection
(1), the Treasury must—

(@) send a copy of it to the Welsh Ministers, and
(b) lay a copy of it before the House of Commons.

For the purposes of this section a debt is a “housing debt”, in relation to
a local housing authority, if —

(@) the debt is held by the authority in connection with the exercise
of its functions relating to houses and other property within its
Housing Revenue Account, and

(b) interest and other charges in respect of the debt are required to
be carried to the debit of that account.

Pack Page 35

10

15

20

25

30

35

40



Wales Bill 27
Part 3 — Miscellaneous

76B Power to obtain information

(1) A local housing authority in Wales, and any officer or employee of a
local housing authority in Wales concerned with their housing
functions, must supply the Welsh Ministers with such information as
the Welsh Ministers may specify, either generally or in any particular
case, for the purpose of enabling the Welsh Ministers to exercise their
functions under section 76A.

(2) A local housing authority must supply the Welsh Ministers with such
certificates supporting the information required by them as they may
specify.

(38) If a local housing authority, or any officer or employee of a local
housing authority concerned with their housing functions, fails to
comply with subsection (1) or (2) before the end of such period as the
Welsh Ministers may specify, the Welsh Ministers may exercise their
functions under section 76A on the basis of such assumptions and
estimates as they see fit.”

(3) Section 87 (determinations and directions) is amended as follows.
(4) For “the Secretary of State” (in each place) substitute “the appropriate person”.
(5) After subsection (1) insert—

“(1A) Subsection (1)(b) does not apply to determinations under section
76A(2).”
(6) Insubsection (2)—
(@) for “him” substitute “that person”;
(b) for “he” substitute “the appropriate person”.

The work of the Law Commission so far as relating to Wales
(1) The Law Commissions Act 1965 is amended as follows.

(2) Insection 3(1) (functions of the Commissions), after paragraph (e) insert—

“(ea) in the case of the Law Commission, to provide advice and
information to the Welsh Ministers;”.

(3) Insection3A (reports on implementation of Law Commission proposals), after
subsection (6) insert—

“(7) This section does not require the Lord Chancellor to prepare reports on
Law Commission proposals on which the Welsh Ministers are required
to report (see section 3C).”

(4) After section 3B insert—
“3C Report on implementation of Law Commission proposals: Wales

(1) The Welsh Ministers must prepare a report each year on—

(@) the Law Commission proposals relating to Welsh devolved
matters that have been implemented since the preparation of
the previous report under this section;

(b) the Law Commission proposals relating to Welsh devolved
matters that have not been implemented as at the preparation of
the report.

Pack Page 36

10

15

20

25

30

35

40



28

Wiales Bill
Part 3 — Miscellaneous

(2) The report required under subsection (1)(b) must include —
(@) plans for dealing with any of the proposals described in that
paragraph;
(b) any decision not to implement any of those proposals taken
since the preparation of the previous report under this section;
(c) thereasons for any such decision.

(3) The Welsh Ministers must lay the report before the National Assembly
for Wales.

(4) The Welsh Ministers must prepare a report under this section—

(@) Dbefore the first anniversary of the day on which this section
comes into force, and

(b) thereafter, before each subsequent anniversary of that day.

(5) Inthe case of the first report, the references in subsections (1) and (2) to
the period since the preparation of the previous report are to be read as
references to the period since the coming into force of this section.

(6) If adecisionnottoimplementa Law Commission proposal is dealt with
in a report under this section, subsection (1)(b) does not require a later
report to deal with the proposal so far as it is covered by that decision.

(7) If a decision not to implement a Law Commission proposal has been
taken before the coming into force of this section, subsection (1)(b) does
not require any report to deal with the proposal so far as it is covered
by that decision.

(8) In this section—

(@) “Law Commission proposal” means any proposal or
recommendation for the reform of the law that has been
published in a report by the Law Commission, and

(b) references to the implementation of a Law Commission
proposal are to its implementation in whole or in part.

(9) Whether a Law Commission proposal relates to Welsh devolved
matters is to be determined in accordance with section 3D(8).

3D Protocol about the Law Commission’s work: Wales

(1) The Welsh Ministers and the Law Commission may agree for the
purposes of this section a statement (a “protocol”) about the Law
Commission’s work relating to Welsh devolved matters.

(2) The protocol may include (among other things) provision about —

(@) the principles and methods to be applied in deciding the work
relating to such matters to be carried out by the Law
Commission and in the carrying out of that work;

(b) the assistance and information that the Welsh Ministers and the
Law Commission are to give to each other;

(c) the way in which the Welsh Ministers are to deal with Law
Commission proposals so far as they relate to Welsh devolved
matters.

(3) The Welsh Ministers and the Law Commission must from time to time
review the protocol and may agree to revise it.

Pack Page 37

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45



Wales Bill 29
Part 3 — Miscellaneous

(4) The Law Commission must not agree the protocol (or any revision of it)
without the Lord Chancellor’s approval.

(5) The Welsh Ministers must lay the protocol (and any revision of it)
before the National Assembly for Wales.

(6) The Welsh Ministers and the Law Commission must have regard to the
protocol.

(7) “Law Commission proposal” has the meaning given in section 3C(8)(a).

(8) In this section and section 3C, the Law Commission’s work (including
any of their proposals) relates to Welsh devolved matters so far as it
relates to—

(@) any matter provision about which would be within the
legislative competence of the National Assembly for Wales if it
were contained in an Act of the Assembly, or

(b) (so far as it is not within paragraph (a)), any matter functions
with respect to which are exercisable by the Welsh Ministers,
the First Minister for Wales, the Counsel General to the Welsh
Government or the National Assembly for Wales Commission.”

(®) In section 5(4) (expenses to be paid out of money provided by Parliament),
after “Parliament” insert “(except to the extent that those expenses are met by
the Welsh Ministers)”.

PART 4

GENERAL

25 Orders

Any power to make an order under this Act is exercisable by statutory
instrument.

26  Interpretation

In this Act—
“the Assembly” means the National Assembly for Wales;

“enactment” includes a Measure or Act of the Assembly and subordinate
legislation (within the meaning of the Interpretation Act 1978);

“financial year” means the 12 months ending with 31 March;
“GOWA 2006” means the Government of Wales Act 2006;
“modifications” includes amendments, repeals and revocations;

“tax year” means a year beginning on 6 April and ending on the following
5 April.

27  Power to make supplementary, consequential, etc provision

(1) The Treasury may by order make —

(@) such supplementary, incidental or consequential provision as appears
appropriate in connection with the provisions of Part 2, and

(b) such transitional, transitory or saving provision as appears appropriate
in connection with the coming into force of those provisions.

Pack Page 38

10

15

20

25

30

35

40



30

Wiales Bill
Part 4 — General

28
@)
(2)

29
@

(2)
®)

An order under this section may make —
(a) different provision for different cases or classes of case or different
purposes;
(b) provision which applies generally or subject to specified exceptions or
only in relation to specific cases or classes of case.

An order under this section may make modifications of this Act or of an
enactment passed or made before the passing of this Act or in the session in
which this Act is passed.

A statutory instrument containing an order under this section which includes
provision modifying any provision of an Act or a Measure or Act of the
Assembly may not be made unless a draft of the instrument has been laid
before and approved by a resolution of the House of Commons.

Any other statutory instrument containing an order under this section is
subject to annulment in pursuance of a resolution of the House of Commons.

Commencement
This Part comes into force on the day on which this Act is passed.

The following provisions come into force at the end of the period of 2 months
beginning with the day on which this Act is passed —

(a) Partl;
(b) Part 2, except the referendum-related provisions and sections 19 and

4

(c) section 24.

Subsection (2)(b) is subject to the provision made in the following sections as
to how those sections have effect—

(@) sections 14, 15 and 16;
(b) sections 17 and 18.

The “referendum-related provisions” are sections 8, 9 and 10(5), (6), (7)(a) and
(8)(a); they come into force in accordance with section 13 (commencement if
majority in favour at referendum).

The following provisions come into force on such day as the Treasury may by
order appoint—

(@) section19;
(b) section 23.

An order under subsection (5) may appoint different days for different
purposes.

Section 20 comes into force on the day on which section 121(1A) of GOWA 2006
(inserted by section 19) comes into force.
Extent and short title

The amendments and repeals made by this Act have the same extent as the
enactments amended or repealed.

Subject to that, this Act extends to the United Kingdom.
This Act may be cited as the Wales Act 2014.

Pack Page 39

10

15

20

25

30

35

40



Wales Bill 31
Schedule 1 — Referendum about commencement of income tax provisions

SCHEDULES

SCHEDULE 1 Section 11
REFERENDUM ABOUT COMMENCEMENT OF INCOME TAX PROVISIONS
Entitlement to vote

1 (1) The persons entitled to vote in a referendum held by virtue of section 11(1)
are those who would be entitled to vote in a general election of Assembly
members if one were held on the date of the poll at the referendum (as to
which, see section 12 of GOWA 2006).

(2) But an Order under section 11(1) may include provision for disregarding
alterations made in a register of electors after a date specified in the Order.

Conduct etc of referendum

2 (1) An Order under section 11(1) may make provision for and in connection
with the referendum which it causes to be held.

(2) Such an Order may, in particular, apply or incorporate, with or without
modifications, any enactment relating to referendums, elections or
donations.

(3) In sub-paragraph (2) “donations” means anything which is or corresponds
to a donation within the meaning of Part 4 of PPERA 2000.

Referendum question and statement

3 (1) AnOrder under section 11(1) —

(@) must specify the question to be included on the ballot paper at the
referendum which it causes to be held, and

(b) may specify a statement to precede the question on that ballot paper.

(2) A question or statement specified under sub-paragraph (1) must be specified
in both English and Welsh.

(3) The Secretary of State must, no later than the time at which paragraph (b) of
section 104(4) of PPERA 2000 (report stating views as to intelligibility of
referendum question expressed by Electoral Commission) is complied with,
send to the First Minister a copy of the report laid before Parliament under
that paragraph.

(4) As soon as practicable after the First Minister receives a copy of a report
under sub-paragraph (3), the First Minister must lay a copy of the report
before the Assembly.

Pack Page 40

10

15

20

25

30



32 Wales Bill
Schedule 1 — Referendum about commencement of income tax provisions

Date of referendum

4 (1) An Order under section 11(1) must specify the date of the poll at the
referendum which it causes to be held.

(2) The Minister may by order vary the date of the poll specified in such an
Order (including a date previously set by virtue of this sub-paragraph) if it
appears inappropriate for it to be held on that date.

(3) The date of the poll, as specified under sub-paragraph (1) or varied under
sub-paragraph (2), must not be within the period —

(@) beginning with the 25th working day before, and
(b) ending with the 25th working day after,

the date of the poll at an election, or at another referendum, which is held
throughout Wales.

(4) But sub-paragraph (3) does not apply if the date of the poll at the election or
other referendum is not known to the Minister at the time when—

(@) the recommendation is made to Her Majesty to make the Order (in
the case of an Order under section 11(1)), or

(b) the Minister makes the order (in the case of an order under sub-
paragraph (2)).
5) No order may be made under sub-paragraph (2) without the consent of the
y paragrap
Welsh Ministers.

(6) A statutory instrument containing an order under sub-paragraph (2) is
subject to annulment in pursuance of a resolution of either House of
Parliament.

(7) In this paragraph, “working day” means any day other than—
(@) aSaturday or Sunday;
(b) a Christmas Eve, Christmas Day or Good Friday;

(c) a day which is a bank holiday under the Banking and Financial
Dealings Act 1971 in any part of the United Kingdom;

(d) aday appointed for public thanksgiving or mourning.
Referendum period

5 An Order under section 11(1) must determine the referendum period for the
purposes of Part 7 of PPERA 2000 in the case of the referendum which it
causes to be held.

Combination of polls

6 (1) An Order under section 11(1) may make provision for and in connection
with the combination of the poll at the referendum which it causes to be held
with that at an election or at another referendum (or both).

(2) Sub-paragraph (1) is subject to paragraph 4(3) (which limits the

circumstances in which the poll at a referendum held by virtue of section
11(1) can be combined with a poll at an election or another referendum).

Pack Page 41

10

15

20

25

30

35

40



Wales Bill
Schedule 1 — Referendum about commencement of income tax provisions

33

Encouraging voting

7

An Order under section 11(1) may authorise or require the Electoral
Commission to do things for the purpose of encouraging voting in the
referendum which it causes to be held (including imposing obligations or
conferring powers on counting officers or other persons).

Provision of information to voters

8

(1)

4)

This paragraph applies in relation to a referendum held by virtue of section
11(1) if the Electoral Commission have not, before the appropriate day,
designated an organisation under section 108 of PPERA 2000 (organisations
to whom assistance is available under section 110 of that Act) in relation to
each possible outcome of the referendum.

The Electoral Commission may take such steps as they think appropriate to
provide such information for persons entitled to vote in the referendum as
the Commission think is likely to promote awareness among those persons
about the arguments for each answer to the referendum question.

Information provided in pursuance of sub-paragraph (2) must be provided
by whatever means the Commission think is most likely to secure (in the
most cost-effective way) that the information comes to the notice of
everyone entitled to vote in the referendum.

In this paragraph “the appropriate day” means —

(@) if an order is made under section 109(6) of PPERA 2000 (variation of
period for applications for designation under section 108 or period
for determination of applications or both) in the case of the
referendum, such day as that order specifies as the appropriate day,

(b) if no such order is made and one or more applications are made in
relation to each possible outcome of the referendum before the 29th
day of the referendum period, the 43rd day of that period, and

(c) inany other case in which no such order is made, the 29th day of the
referendum period.

Referendum material

9

Section 126 of PPERA 2000 (details to appear on referendum material) does
not apply to any material published for the purposes of a referendum held
by virtue of section 11(1) if the publication is required under or by virtue of
the Order that causes the referendum to be held.

Funding and accounts

10

11

An Order under section 11(1) must include provision for the funding of costs
of the referendum which it causes to be held (and may, in particular, include
provision for the costs to be charged on, or payable out of, the Welsh
Consolidated Fund).

An Order under section 11(1) must include provision as to the preparation
and audit of accounts relating to payments made by virtue of provision
included in the Order under paragraph 10.

Pack Page 42

10

15

20

25

30

35

40



34 Wales Bill
Schedule 1 — Referendum about commencement of income tax provisions

No legal challenge to referendum result

12 (1) No court may entertain any proceedings for questioning the number of
ballot papers counted or votes cast in a referendum held by virtue of section
11(1) as certified by the Chief Counting Officer or a counting officer unless —

(@) the proceedings are brought by a claim for judicial review, and
(b) the claim form is filed before the end of the permitted period.

(2) “The permitted period” means the period of 6 weeks beginning with —

(@) the date on which the Chief Counting Officer or counting officer
gives a certificate as to the number of ballot papers counted and
votes cast in the referendum, or

(b) if the Chief Counting Officer or counting officer gives more than one
such certificate, the date on which the last is given.

Supplementary

13 An Order under section 11(1) may include provision creating criminal
offences.

Interpretation

14 (1) In this Schedule—

“the Minister” means the Secretary of State or the Lord President of the
Council;

“PPERA 2000” means the Political Parties, Elections and Referendums
Act 2000.

(2) Expressions used in this Schedule and in Part 7 of PPERA 2000 have the
same meaning in this Schedule as in that Part.

SCHEDULE 2 Section 15
WELSH TAX ON LAND TRANSACTIONS: CONSEQUENTIAL AMENDMENTS

Finance Act 1931

1 (1) Section 28 of the Finance Act 1931 (production to Commissioners of
instruments transferring land) is amended as follows.

(2) In subsection (3), at the end of paragraph (c) add “or a Welsh transaction”.
(3) After subsection (3A) insert—

“(3B) Insubsection (3) “Welsh transaction” means the acquisition of —
(@) an estate, interest, right or power in or over land in Wales, or

(b) the benefit of an obligation, restriction or condition affecting
the value of any such estate, interest, right or power.”

Finance Act 2003

2 The Finance Act 2003 is amended as follows.

Pack Page 43

10

15

20

25

30

35



Wiales Bill

35

Schedule 2 — Welsh tax on land transactions: consequential amendments

3

4

10

11

(1) Section 48 (power to prescribe other chargeable interests) is amended as

follows.

(2) After subsection (1) insert—

“(1A) See section 48A regarding land which is partly in England and partly
in Wales.”

(3) In subsection (5), omit “and Wales”.

After section 48 insert —

“48A Interests, transactions and consideration where land in England and

Wales

(1) This section sets out how this Part applies to a transaction which is
the acquisition of —

(@) an estate, interest, right or power in or over land, or

(b) the benefit of an obligation, restriction or condition affecting
the value of any such estate, interest, right or power,

where the land is partly in England and partly in Wales.

(2) The transaction is to be treated as if it were two transactions, one
relating to the land in England (“the English transaction”) and the
other relating to the land in Wales.

(38) The consideration for the transaction is to be apportioned between
those two transactions on a just and reasonable basis.

(4) Accordingly, the English transaction is to be treated as a land
transaction within the meaning of this Part (being the acquisition of
a chargeable interest relating to the land in England).

(5) But subsection (4) does not apply in the case of an exempt interest.”

In section 60 (compulsory purchase facilitating development), in subsections
(2)(a) and (5)(a), omit “and Wales”.

In section 73(5) (definition of mortgage for land acquired under alternative
property finance arrangements), in subsection (b)(i), omit “or Wales”.

In section 108(1A) (linked transactions), for “the land to which it relates is in
Scotland” substitute —

“(a) the transaction relates to land in Scotland, or

(b) the transaction relates to land in Wales (whether by virtue of
section 48A(2) or otherwise).”

In section 117(2) (meaning of “major interest” in England or Wales), omit “or
Wales”.

In section 121 (minor definitions), in the definition of “jointly entitled”, omit
“and Wales”.

In Schedule 7 (group relief), in paragraph 2B(4) (certain mortgage
arrangements not eligible for relief), omit “and Wales”.

In Schedule 9 (right to buy, shared ownership leases, etc), in paragraph
7(2)(b) (shared ownership trusts), omit “or Wales”.

Pack Page 44

10

15

20

25

30

35

40



36 Wales Bill
Schedule 2 — Welsh tax on land transactions: consequential amendments

12 In Schedule 10 (returns, enquiries, assessments and appeals), in paragraph
45(2)(a) (definition of “the relevant tribunal”), omit “and Wales”.

Finance Act 2009

13 Schedule 61 to the Finance Act 2009 (alternative finance investment bonds)
is amended in accordance with paragraphs 14 and 15.

14 (1) Paragraph 1 is amended as follows.

(2) In the definition of “effective date” in sub-paragraph (1), after “Scotland” (in
both places) insert “or Wales”.

(3) For sub-paragraph (1A) substitute —

“(1A) In this Schedule “qualifying interest” means —
(@) inrelation to land in England and Wales —
(i) an estate in fee simple absolute, or
(ii) a term of years absolute,
whether subsisting at law or in equity;
(b) in relation to land in Scotland —
(i) the interest of an owner of land, or
(ii) the tenant’s right over or interest in a property
subject to a lease;
(c) inrelation to land in Northern Ireland —
(i) any freehold estate, or
(ii) any leasehold estate,
whether subsisting at law or in equity;

except that it does not include a lease for a term of years, or (in
Scotland) for a period, of 21 years or less.”

15 In the following provisions omit “and Wales” —
(@) paragraph 5(6) (in both places);
(b) paragraph 6(1)(a);
(c) paragraph 11(2);
(d) paragraph 12(1)(b);
(e) paragraph 18(5) and (6);
(f) paragraph 19(1)(a).

Scotland Act 2012

16 In Schedule 3 to the Scotland Act 2012, omit paragraph 31(4) (which inserts
paragraph 1(1A) of Schedule 61 to the Finance Act 2009).

Pack Page 45

10

15

20

25

30



Wales Bill

A
BILL
[AS AMENDED IN COMMITTEE]

To make provision about elections to and membership of the National Assembly for
Wales; to make provision about the Welsh Assembly Government; to make provision
about the setting by the Assembly of a rate of income tax to be paid by Welsh
taxpayers and about the devolution of taxation powers to the Assembly; to make
related amendments to Part 4A of the Scotland Act 1998; to make provision about
borrowing by the Welsh Ministers; to make miscellaneous amendments in the law
relating to Wales; and for connected purposes.

Secretary David Jones
supported by
The Prime Minister, the Deputy Prime Minister,
My Chancellor of the Exchequer,
Secretary Alistair Carmichael,
Secretary Theresa Villiers, Danny Alexander,
Mr David Gauke and Stephen Crabb.

Ordered, by The House of Commonts,
to be Printed, 6 May 2014.

© Parliamentary copyright House of Commons 2014
This publication may be reproduced under the terms of the Open Parliament Licence, which is published at
www.parliament.uk/site-information/copyright.

PUBLISHED BY AUTHORITY OF THE HOUSE OF COMMONS
LONDON — THE STATIONERY OFFICE LIMITED
Printed in the United Kingdom by
The Stationery Office Limited
£X.XX

Blﬂ 205 (XxXXXX) 55/3

xxxbarxxx

Pack Page 46



By virtue of paragraph(s) ix of Standing Order 17.42

Document is Restricted

Pack Page 47



By virtue of paragraph(s) ix of Standing Order 17.42

Document is Restricted

Pack Page 56



Agenda ltem 5

Jane Hutt AC/ AM | ’\/ (ff

Y Gweinidog Cyllid e
Minister for Finance Jl

Llywodraeth Cymru
Welsh Government

Eich cyf/Your ref
Ein cyf/Our ref

Jocelyn Davies AM,

Chair, Finance Committee,

The National Assembly for Wales,
Cardiff Bay,

Cardiff

CF99 1NA

jc‘May 2014

Thank you for inviting me to assist the Committee’s inquiry into best budget practice
processes.

As the Committee is aware, the Wales Bill currently progressing though the UK Parliament
implements the majority of the recommendations of the first report of the Silk Commission
including the devolution of taxes, increased access to borrowing and reforming budgetary
procedures. Extensive discussions and negotiations with the UK Government have taken
place during this process, throughout which, the Welsh Government’s position in support of
all the Silk recommendations and, where appropriate, the Holtham Commission report, have
become well established.

Discussions continue with the UK Government as the Wales Bill progresses to fully
understand the impact of implementation of these changes. We continue to seek to
maximise the flexibility of the Welsh Government within a newly devolved financial
framework whilst recognising that a balance will be required in respect of the continuing
central role of HM Treasury.

| have discussed with the Committee previously my commitment to building on the work
already done to improve the presentation and transparency of our spending plans and
exploring the links between budgets and outcomes. This work will continue, however our
priority in reforming our budgetary procedures must primarily focus on developing a
framework which is ‘it for purpose’ to reflect our new fiscal powers in respect of devolved
taxation and borrowing.

Bae Caerdydd « Cardiff Bay English Enquiry Line 0845 010 3300
Caerdydd « Cardiff Llinell Ymholiadau Cymraeg 0845 010 4400
CF99 1NA Correspondence.Jane.Hutt@wales.gsi.gov.uk

Wedi’i argraffu ar bapur wedi’i RQGHD 2@8%p8 Printed on 100% recycled paper



We are in the early stages of developing our approach as the implications of the Wales Bill
become clear and it is vital that proper consideration is undertaken in a timely manner. We
have developed an excellent record of working together and | very much welcome the
Committee’s inquiry into this area. | look forward, with interest, to hearing the views of the
Committee. | will, of course, be happy to discuss these issues further when | attend the
Committee on 14" May to give evidence on this particular inquiry and in relation to the
Legislative Consent Motion on the Wales Bill.

P stnisiren ,
Jane Hutt AC/ AM

Y Gweinidog Cyllid
Minister for Finance

Pack Page 59



By virtue of paragraph(s) ix of Standing Order 17.42

Document is Restricted

Pack Page 60



By virtue of paragraph(s) ix of Standing Order 17.42

Document is Restricted

Pack Page 68



	Agenda
	3 Papers to note
	4 Wales Bill: Legislative Consent Memorandum
	Wales Bill (as amended in Committee 7 May 2014)
	Legal Brief
	Research brief

	5 Best Practice Budget Processes Inquiry: Evidence Session 1
	Research Brief

	6 Best Practice Budget Processes Inquiry: Evidence Session 2

